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United States Patent and Trademark Office 
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board 

 
RELIANT PRO REHAB, LLC  ) Cancellation No. 92062676  
      ) Registration No. 1,953,530 
 Petitioner,    ) 
      ) 
 vs.     ) 
      ) 
RELIANT CARE GROUP, L.L.C., ) 
      ) 
 Owner.    ) 
 

Notice of Pending Civil Action and  
Motion for Suspension of Proceedings 

 
 Reliant Care Group, LLC, by its undersigned counsel of record, notifies the 

Board of the following civil action involving the same or related parties and the 

same mark: Reliant Care Group, L.L.C., et al. v. Reliant Management Group, 

L.L.C., Case No. 14-cv-00043-CDP, United States District Court, Eastern District of 

Missouri, Eastern Division. This notice is provided pursuant to 37 C.F.R. § 2.117, 

TBMP § 510.02, and the Board’s November 20, 2015 letter.  

1. Petitioner Reliant Pro Rehab, L.L.C. is in privy with Reliant 

Management Group, L.L.C. 

2. Reliant Care Group filed a lawsuit against Reliant Management Group 

for trademark infringement and other claims on January 10, 2014. A true and 

accurate copy of Reliant Care Group’s Complaint is attached as Exhibit A. 

3. Reliant Management Group counterclaimed against Reliant Care 

Group seeking cancellation of the same Service Mark involved in this cancellation 

proceeding, registration 1,953,530, amongst other relief. A true and accurate copy of 



 2 

Reliant Management Group’s Second Amended Counterclaim is attached as Exhibit 

B. 

4. The United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri 

ordered a mediation be held between the parties and the parties held the mediation 

on November 20, 2015. 

5. A day before the mediation, Reliant Pro Rehab filed its Petition to 

Cancel as a means to gain leverage for Reliant Management Group in its court-

ordered mediation with Reliant Care Group. 

6. Reliant Management Group and Reliant Pro Rehab are closely related 

companies and Reliant Pro Rehab is licensed to use Reliant Management Group’s 

“Reliant Rehabilitation” service mark.  

7. David Nance represents both Reliant Pro Rehab and Reliant 

Management Group. 

8. Reliant Management Group identified Reliant Pro Rehab as its sister 

company, they have the same owner, the same executives, the same address, and 

Reliant Management Group is asserting Reliant Pro Rehab’s legal rights in the 

Counterclaim it filed against Reliant Care Group. See, Defendant/Counterclaim 

Plaintiff’s First Amended Counterclaim [doc#20] at ¶¶ 6, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23, 25 (A 

true and accurate copy of Defendant/Counterclaim Plaintiff’s First Amended 

Counterclaim is attached as Exhibit C); RMG First Response to RC First Set of 

Interrogatories at interrogatories 2-6 (A true and accurate copy of cited portions of 

RMG First Response to RC First Set of Interrogatories is attached as Exhibit D). 
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9. The lawsuit is ongoing and is scheduled for trial on August 22, 2016. 

10. Suspension of the Board’s proceedings is appropriate because 

Petitioner, Reliant Pro Rehab, L.L.C., and Defendant and Counterclaim Plaintiff 

Reliant Management Group, L.L.C. are closely-related proxies and the lawsuit and 

this proceeding have the same factual and legal issues, specifically cancellation of 

Reliant Care Group’s Service Mark, Registration No. 1,953,530. See 37 C.F.R. § 

2.117; TBMP § 510.02; General Motors Corp. v. Cadillac Club Fashions, Inc., 22 

U.S.P.Q.2d 1933 (T.T.A.B. 1992) (cancellation proceeding should be suspended 

when there is a civil action seeking cancellation of the same mark because the 

district court decision will be dispositive of the issue before the Board). 

 

 

Wherefore, Reliant Care Group respectfully requests that the Board issue an 

order suspending its proceedings pending resolution of the civil action and for such 

other relief as the Board deems just and appropriate. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

HESSE MARTONE, P.C. 
 
 

       By:       /s/ Matthew B. Robinson 
  Andrew J. Martone, Mo. License No. #37382 

Matthew B. Robinson, Mo. License No.        
   #52954 
Suite 100 
13354 Manchester Road 
St. Louis, MO 63131 
Phone:  (314) 862-0300  
Fax:      (314) 862-7010 
andymartone@hessemartone.com 
mattrobinson@hessemartone.com 

Dated: December 15, 2015. 
Attorneys for Reliant Care Group, L.L.C. 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 
 The undersigned hereby certifies that on this 15th day of December, 2015, a 
copy of the foregoing document was electronically filed with the Clerk of the Court 
using the ESTTA system, which will be served electronically to the following: 
 

Mr. David William Nance 
Nance Group, LLC 
3912 Constance Street 
New Orleans, LA  70115 
dwn@nancegroup.com 
 

 Attorneys for Reliant Management  
Group, LLC 

        
   /s/ Matthew B. Robinson 
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 IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI  

 
 
RELIANT CARE GROUP, INC., ) 
a Missouri Corporation, )  
   ) 
and   ) 
   ) 
RELIANT CARE MANAGEMENT, LLC, ) 
a Missouri Limited Liability Company,  ) 
   ) 
and   ) 
   ) 
RELIANT CARE REHABILITATIVE )   
SERVICES, LLC, )     
a Missouri Limited Liability Company, ) 
   ) 
 Plaintiffs, ) 
v.   )  Case No. ___________________ 
   ) 
RELIANT MANAGEMENT GROUP, LLC, ) 
a Louisiana Limited Liability Company, )  
   ) 
 

COMPLAINT  
 

COME NOW Plaintiffs Reliant Care Group, Inc., Reliant Care Management, LLC and 

Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC (hereinafter “Plaintiffs”), by and through their 

undersigned counsel, and for their Complaint against Defendant Reliant Management Group, 

LLC (hereinafter “Defendant”) state to the Court as follows: 

INTRODUCTION  

1. This is an action for trademark infringement under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C.  

§1114(1)(a), false designation of origin under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a), Federal 

trademark dilution under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(c), violation of Missouri’s anti-

dilution statute, Mo. Rev. Stat. §417.061, common law trademark infringement and common law 

unfair competition arising from Defendant’s unauthorized use of the trade name “Reliant 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 1 of 20 PageID #: 1
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Rehabilitation” in the Missouri healthcare and rehabilitation services market. 

PARTIES 

2. Reliant Care Group, Inc. is a Missouri Corporation with its principal place of 

business at 1869 Craig Park Court in Maryland Heights, Missouri. 

3. Reliant Care Group, Inc. owns Plaintiffs Reliant Care Management, LLC and 

Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC. 

4. Reliant Care Group, Inc. was created on June 23, 1992, has been registered to do 

business in the State of Missouri since June 23, 1992, and is in good standing. 

5. Plaintiff Reliant Care Management, LLC is a Missouri limited liability company 

with its principal place of business at 1869 Craig Park Court in Maryland Heights, Missouri. 

6. Plaintiff Reliant Care Management, LLC manages healthcare facilities throughout 

Missouri including the following cities: St. Louis, Kansas City, Salisbury, Florissant, Sedalia, 

Hannibal, Milan, Moberly, St. Elizabeth, Viburnum and Center.  

7. Plaintiff Reliant Care Management, LLC has been registered to do business in the 

State of Missouri since November 29, 1994.   

8. Plaintiff Reliant Care Management, LLC maintains an informational website at 

www.reliantcaremgmt.com. 

9. Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC is a Missouri limited liability 

company with its principal place of business at 2011 Corona Road in Columbia, Missouri. 

10. Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC is a therapy management 

company specializing in skilled nursing facilities and hospital-based rehabilitation management 

services. 

11. Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC has been registered to do 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 2 of 20 PageID #: 2
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business in the State of Missouri since December 28, 1994. 

12. Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC maintains an informational 

website at www.reliantcarerehab.com. 

13. Defendant Reliant Management Group, LLC is a Louisiana limited liability 

company and not in good standing.  Its principal office is at 11616 Southfork Avenue in Baton 

Rouge, Louisiana.   

14. Defendant maintains an office at 1200 McCutchen Road, Rolla, Missouri 65401. 

15. Defendant Reliant Management Group, LLC has recently started providing 

rehabilitation services in the State of Missouri under the name “Reliant Rehabilitation.” 

16. Defendant Reliant Management Group, LLC began using the name “Reliant 

Rehabilitation” in 2003. 

17. Defendant Reliant Management Group, LLC is not registered with the Missouri 

Secretary of State. 

18. Reliant Rehabilitation is not registered with the Missouri Secretary of State. 

19. Defendant Reliant Management Group, LLC maintains an informational website 

at www.reliant-rehab.com. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE  

20. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ claims pursuant 

to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332, 1338, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1116, 1121.  This Court has supplemental 

jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ state law claims under 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

21. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Defendant in that it is doing business 

in the State of Missouri and in this District. 

22. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 in that Defendant is 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 3 of 20 PageID #: 3
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subject to personal jurisdiction in this District and this is the District where the events giving rise 

to Plaintiffs’ claims occurred.  

BACKGROUND  FACTS 

23. Plaintiffs have been providing rehabilitation services throughout Missouri since 

1994. 

24. Plaintiffs’ names are published through the Missouri Secretary of State and can be 

found by a simple search of the Missouri of Secretary of State’s website.   

25. Plaintiff Reliant Care Management, LLC has been servicing the rehabilitation 

needs of Missouri residents since 1994 and has been successfully managing healthcare and 

nursing facilities since 1994.  These facilities are located in the following cities throughout 

Missouri: St. Louis, Kansas City, Salisbury, Florissant, Sedalia, Hannibal, Milan, Moberly, St. 

Elizabeth, Viburnum and Center.  

26. A search of Reliant Care Management, LLC’s name on the World Wide Web will 

bring a person to its website which lists its services as well as its health care facilities.   

27. Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC maintains its key facility in 

Columbia, Missouri.  It provides rehabilitation services to residents in Missouri.  

28. A search of Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC on the World Wide Web 

will bring a person to its website which lists its services in Missouri. 

29. Reliant Care Group, Inc. owns the following United States trademark registration 

containing the words “Reliant Care Group:”  

Registration No.: 1,953,530 

Mark:     RELIANT CARE GROUP 

Registration Date: January 30, 1996 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 4 of 20 PageID #: 4

Exhibit A at p.4



5 

 

Goods & Services:   “Health care services: namely, skilled and intermediate nursing 

care services, medical services, pharmacy and medical supply 

services, therapy services and in-home health services.” 

Filing Date: February 22, 1993 

30. A copy of the Certificate of Registration for this Mark is attached hereto as 

Exhibit A .  The Certificate of Registration is valid and subsisting and Plaintiff owns the record 

title to the registered trademark described above. 

31. The Certificate of Registration is prima facie evidence of the validity of the 

registered trademark, Plaintiff Reliant Care Group, Inc.’s ownership of the registered trademark, 

Plaintiff Reliant Care Group, Inc.’s exclusive right to use the registered trademark in connection 

with the services specified in the Certificate of Registration and constructive notice of ownership 

under 15 U.S.C. § 1072. 

32. The above-referenced registration is incontestable and is conclusive evidence of 

its validity under 15 U.S.C. § 1115(b). 

33. Plaintiff Reliant Care Group, Inc. has authorized Plaintiffs Reliant Care 

Management, LLC and Reliant Care Rehabilitation Services, LLC to use the trademark “Reliant 

Care.” 

34. Plaintiffs’ names are well known in Missouri for the excellent services they 

provide. For almost 20 years, Plaintiffs have strived to become leaders in the healthcare and 

rehabilitation industry in Missouri.   

35. The internet is important to the continued success of Plaintiffs, including their 

reputations throughout Missouri. 

36. As such, when a client types “Reliant,” “Reliant Care Group”, “Reliant Care 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 5 of 20 PageID #: 5
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Management” or “Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services” and “Missouri” in a search engine such 

as Google, it is imperative that the search result take them to these companies and not to sites 

with similar and confusing names. 

37. Several employment websites advertise Plaintiffs’ employment positions in 

Missouri. 

38. Several of these employment websites also advertise employment positions with 

Defendant Reliant Rehabilitation in the same areas where Plaintiffs maintain their facilities and 

provide rehabilitation services.  This is causing confusion within the rehabilitation services 

industry in this state. 

39. Plaintiffs exercise strict control over the use of their business names and control 

the advertising and marketing of their services and facilities. 

40. The advertising, marketing and promotion of Plaintiffs and their services by use 

of the names Reliant Care Group, Inc., Reliant Care Management, LLC and Reliant Care 

Rehabilitative Services, LLC for almost 20 years have caused consumers as well as potential 

employees to recognize their names as indicators of Plaintiffs’ exceptional rehabilitative services 

and have caused consumers to seek out Plaintiffs for their rehabilitation needs rather than other 

companies.  

DEFENDANT’S WRONGFUL ACTS  

41. On January 12, 2011, attorney David W. Nance forwarded a letter to Reliant Care 

Rehabilitative Services, LLC advising that Defendant Reliant Management Group, LLC would 

soon be offering rehabilitation services in Missouri under the name “Reliant Rehabilitation” and 

demanding Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC to stop use of its name in connection with 

its services.  See Exhibit B attached hereto.   

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 6 of 20 PageID #: 6
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42. On February 3, 2011, Plaintiffs responded to attorney Nance’s letter correcting 

the information contained in his January 12, 2011 letter and specifically advising that Reliant 

Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC and Reliant Management Group, LLC had been doing 

business in Missouri under the  name “Reliant” since 1994, almost one decade before the 

existence of Reliant Management Group, LLC.  See Exhibit C attached hereto. 

43. In September 2013, Plaintiffs became aware that Defendant was offering 

rehabilitative services to customers in Missouri despite receiving notice in February 2011 of 

Plaintiffs’ rights to use the name “Reliant.” 

44. Defendant is also advertising employment positions in Missouri on several of the 

same websites used by Plaintiffs.   

45. Defendant is knowingly providing, offering and advertising its services under the 

name “Reliant Rehabilitation” despite its knowledge that Plaintiffs have been using “Reliant” in 

their names in Missouri since 1994. 

46. Defendant is not authorized by Plaintiffs to provide, offer or advertise its services 

under the name “Reliant Rehabilitation.” 

47. Defendant’s use of the word “Reliant” in connection with its services has caused 

and will continue to cause confusion among individuals seeking rehabilitation services as well as 

individuals seeking employment positions with Plaintiffs.  

48. The following are examples of the confusion Defendant has created due to its 

unlawful use of the name Reliant Rehabilitation: 

A. On or about August 21, 2013, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitation 

Services, LLC hired a Speech Language Pathologist (“SLP”) who turned 

in a new hire packet.  On her Missouri tax form, the SLP erroneously 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 7 of 20 PageID #: 7
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listed Plaintiff’s company name as “Reliant Rehab” and erroneously wrote 

that Plaintiff’s company was located in Texas. 

B. On or about September 12, 2013, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitation 

Services, LLC offered a full-time position to an SLP at its location at 

Hillside/Beauvais, Missouri.  The SLP stated that the Hillside/Beauvais 

location was too far for her to drive.  She stated that she was interested in 

Plaintiff’s full-time position in Ballwin, Missouri posted on Plaintiff’s 

website.  Plaintiff did not have such a position available and upon 

investigation, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC learned 

that the position to which the SLP referred was with “Reliant 

Rehabilitation.” 

C. On or about September 13, 2013, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative 

Services, LLC’s employee received a voicemail from a former co-worker 

stating that she heard that Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, 

LLC was taking over several rehabilitation facilities in Rolla, Missouri.  

The former co-worker advised that she was interested in full-time 

employment with Plaintiff at one of these facilities.  Upon investigation, it 

was learned that she was referring to facilities owned or managed by 

“Reliant Rehabilitation.” 

D. On or about September 17, 2013, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative 

Services, LLC received an email regarding a position it allegedly posted 

on its website for Ballwin, Missouri.  Plaintiff did not have a position 

posted in Ballwin at that time and upon investigation, it learned that the 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 8 of 20 PageID #: 8
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email was referring to a position offered by “Reliant Rehabilitation.” 

E. On or about September 29, 2013, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative 

Services, LLC received a voicemail from a Certified Occupational 

Therapist Assistant (“COTA”) who stated that she heard Plaintiff Reliant 

Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC acquired a rehabilitation facility in 

Lexington, Missouri.  Upon investigation, Plaintiff learned that the facility 

to which the COTA was referring was owned or managed by “Reliant 

Rehabilitation.” 

F. On or about October 3, 2013, Plaintiff Reliant Care Rehabilitative 

Services, LLC spoke with an SLP regarding full-time employment with 

Plaintiff.  The SLP erroneously advised Plaintiff that she was currently 

assigned to one of Plaintiff’s facilities in Rolla, Missouri.  At that time, 

Plaintiff did not own or manage a facility in Rolla, Missouri.  The SLP 

stated the facility was run by “Reliant Rehabilitation.” 

49. Defendant, by using the name “Reliant Rehabilitation,” is knowingly providing, 

offering and advertising its services to mislead, deceive and confuse customers and employees, 

and draw them away from Plaintiffs and to “Reliant Rehabilitation”. 

COUNT I  
TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT  

UNDER 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1)(a) 
 
50. Plaintiff Reliant Care Group, Inc. re-alleges and incorporates herein by reference 

the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 to 49 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

51. Defendant’s aforementioned acts constitute trademark infringement in violation of 

the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1)(a). 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 9 of 20 PageID #: 9
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52. Plaintiff Reliant Care Group, Inc.’s federal registration of the mark “Reliant Care 

Group” (Registration No. 1,953,530) is incontestable which provides conclusive evidence of the 

validity of the registration, Plaintiff’s ownership of the “Reliant Care” mark, and Plaintiff’s 

exclusive rights to use the “Reliant Care” name in commerce in connection with the services 

specified in the Certificate of Registration under the provisions of 15 U.S.C. § 1115(b). 

53. Defendant’s wrongful use of the word “Reliant” in its business name, particularly 

where the business is in direct competition with Plaintiff’s business, is likely to cause confusion 

as to the ownership or authorization by Plaintiff.  Defendant’s actions constitute trademark 

infringement in violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114. 

54. As a proximate result of Defendant’s actions, Plaintiff has suffered and will 

continue to suffer great damage to its business, goodwill, reputation, profits as well as the 

strength of the “Reliant Care” name.  The injuries to Plaintiff are and continue to be ongoing and 

irreparable.  An award of monetary damages alone cannot fully compensate Plaintiff for its 

injuries and Plaintiff lacks an adequate remedy at law.  

55. The foregoing acts of infringement have been and continue to be deliberate, 

willful and wanton, making this an exceptional case within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1117.  

56. Plaintiff Reliant Care Group, Inc. is entitled to a permanent injunction against 

Defendant as well as other remedies available under the Lanham Act including but not limited to 

compensatory damages, loss of profits, costs and attorney’s fees.   

57. As a result of Defendant’s activities, Plaintiff has been damaged in an amount 

greater than $75,000.   

COUNT II 
FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN  

UNDER 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) 
 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 10 of 20 PageID #: 10

Exhibit A at p.10



11 

 

58. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations contained 

in paragraphs 1 to 49 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

59. Defendant’s use of the word “Reliant” in its name in connection with 

rehabilitation services in Missouri falsely represents that such services originate with Plaintiffs 

and are sponsored by, authorized by and licensed by Plaintiffs. 

60. Defendant is not an authorized user of the trade name “Reliant” and Plaintiffs 

cannot exercise any control over the nature and quality of Defendant’s rehabilitative services. 

61. Upon information and belief, Defendant’s false designation of origin has been 

willful and deliberate and designed specifically to trade upon the wide public awareness and 

consumer goodwill enjoyed by Plaintiffs for identical services. 

62. Plaintiffs’ consumer goodwill is of enormous value and Plaintiffs will suffer 

irreparable harm if Defendant’s false designation of origin as to “Reliant Rehabilitation” is 

allowed to continue. 

63. Plaintiffs’ names are “famous marks” within the meaning of the Lanham Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 1125(c), and have been famous marks prior to Defendant’s conduct alleged herein. 

64. Defendant’s false designation of origin will likely continue unless enjoined by 

this Court. 

65. By misappropriating and using the word “Reliant” in its business name, 

Defendant misrepresents and falsely describes to the general public that its services are those of 

or affiliated with the services of Plaintiffs and creates a likelihood of confusion by the ultimate 

consumers as to the source of the rehabilitation services. 

66. Defendant’s unlawful and unauthorized use of the word “Reliant” in its name in 

connection with rehabilitation services creates express and implied misrepresentations that 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 11 of 20 PageID #: 11
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Defendant’s services are performed, authorized, offered and approved by Plaintiffs all to 

Defendant’s benefit and to the detriment of Plaintiffs.  

67. Defendant’s aforesaid acts are in violation of The Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

1125(a) in that Defendant’s use of the word “Reliant” in its name in connection with 

rehabilitation services constitutes false designation of origin.  

68. Through Plaintiffs’ hard work in providing excellent rehabilitation services and 

promotion of their businesses under the names Reliant Care Group, Inc., Reliant Care 

Management, LLC and Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC, Plaintiffs have created 

valuable goodwill and their names symbolize their reputation for quality and excellence in the 

healthcare and rehabilitation industry.  

69. Defendant’s acts have misled and will continue to mislead the public as to the 

source of the services, permit and accomplish palming off of Defendant’s services as those of 

Plaintiffs, and falsely suggest a connection with Plaintiffs.  

70. As a proximate result of Defendant’s actions, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer great damage to their business, goodwill, reputation, profits as well as the 

strength of the “Reliant Care” name.  The injuries to Plaintiffs are and continue to be ongoing 

and irreparable.  An award of monetary damages alone cannot fully compensate Plaintiffs for 

their injuries and Plaintiffs lack an adequate remedy at law.  

71. The foregoing acts of infringement have been and continue to be deliberate, 

willful and wanton, making this an exceptional case within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1117.  

72. Plaintiffs are entitled to a permanent injunction against Defendant as well as other 

remedies available under the Lanham Act including, but not limited to, compensatory damages, 

loss of profits, costs and attorney’s fees.   
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73. As a result of Defendant’s activities, Plaintiffs have been damaged in an amount 

greater than $75,000.   

COUNT I II  
FEDERAL TRADEMARK DILUTION  

UNDER 15 U.S.C. § 1125(c) 
 

74. Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations 

contained in Paragraphs 1 through 49 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

75. The “Reliant Care” trademark is a famous mark within the meaning of the 

Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(c) and has been a famous mark prior to Defendant’s conduct as 

alleged herein. 

76. Defendant’s advertisement, promotion, marketing, offering of services and 

providing of services in the healthcare and rehabilitation market using the name “Reliant” is 

likely to cause dilution by blurring and/or dilution by tarnishment of the distinctive quality of the 

“Reliant Care” trade name and was done with willful intent to trade on Plaintiffs’ reputation 

and/or to cause dilution of the “Reliant Care” trade name.  

77. Defendant’s unauthorized use of the word “Reliant” in its business name was 

done with notice and full knowledge that the advertisement, promotion, marketing, offering of 

services and providing of services in the healthcare and rehabilitation market under the name 

“Reliant” was not authorized or licensed by Plaintiffs.  

78. Defendant’s aforementioned acts are in knowing and willful violation of 

Plaintiffs’ rights under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1125(c).  

79. As a proximate result of Defendant’s actions, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer great damage to their business, goodwill, reputation, profits and the strength of 

the “Reliant Care” mark.  The injuries to Plaintiffs are and continue to be ongoing and 
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irreparable.  An award of monetary damages alone cannot fully compensate Plaintiffs for their 

injuries and Plaintiffs lack an adequate remedy at law. 

80. The foregoing acts of infringement have been and continue to be deliberate, 

willful and wanton, making this an exceptional case within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. § 1117. 

81. Plaintiffs are entitled to a permanent injunction against Defendant as well as all 

other remedies available under the Lanham Act including but not limited to compensatory 

damages, lost profits, costs and attorney’s fees.   

82. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiffs have suffered 

damages in an amount greater than $75,000. 

COUNT I V 
VIOLATION OF MISSOURI’S ANTI -DILUTION STATUTE  

MO. REV. STAT. § 417.061 
 

83. Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations 

contained in paragraphs 1 through 49 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

84. The “Reliant Care” trademark is a distinctive mark within the meaning of Mo. 

Rev. Stat. § 417.061 and has been a distinctive and famous mark since prior to Defendant’s 

alleged conduct. 

85. Defendant’s advertising, promoting, marketing, offering of services and providing 

of services in the healthcare and rehabilitation industry using the name “Reliant” dilutes the 

distinctive quality of the “Reliant Care” trade name and was and is being done with the willful 

intent to trade on Plaintiffs’ reputation and/or to cause dilution of the “Reliant Care” trade name. 

86. Defendant’s unauthorized use of the word “Reliant” in its business name was and 

is being done with notice and full knowledge that such advertising, promotion, marketing, 

offering of services and providing of services was not authorized or licensed by Plaintiffs.  
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87. As a proximate result of Defendant’s actions, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer great damage to their business, goodwill, reputation, profits as well as the 

strength of the “Reliant Care” mark.  The injuries to Plaintiffs are and continue to be ongoing 

and irreparable.  An award of monetary damages alone cannot fully compensate Plaintiffs for 

their injuries and Plaintiffs lack an adequate remedy at law.  

88. Defendant’s aforesaid acts are in knowing and willful violation of Plaintiffs’ 

rights under Mo. Rev. Stat. § 417.061. 

89. Plaintiffs are entitled to a permanent injunction against Defendant, as well as 

other remedies available under Missouri’s anti-dilution statute including but not limited to 

compensatory damages, loss of profits, costs and attorney’s fees. 

COUNT V 
COMMON LA W TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT  

 
90. Plaintiffs hereby re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations 

contained in Paragraphs 1 to 49 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

91. As a result of Plaintiffs’ hard work and investment in time and money in 

promoting, advertising, marketing, offering of services and providing services in the healthcare 

and rehabilitation industry, Plaintiffs have created and maintained valuable goodwill in the 

“Reliant Care” trade name.  As such, the word “Reliant” has become associated with Plaintiffs 

and has come to symbolize the excellent quality of Plaintiffs’ services.  

92. Plaintiffs have ownership of the name “Reliant” in the healthcare and 

rehabilitative industry in Missouri. 

93. Defendant’s unauthorized use of the word “Reliant” in its business name is likely 

to and does permit Defendant to pass off its infringing name and services to the general public to 

the detriment of Plaintiffs and to the unjust enrichment of Defendant.   
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94. Defendant’s acts have caused and continue to cause confusion as to the source of 

Defendant’s services.   

95. Defendant’s acts constitute willful infringement of Plaintiff’s exclusive rights in 

the “Reliant Care” trademark in violation of state common law. 

96. As a proximate result of Defendant’s actions, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer great damage to their business, goodwill, reputation, profits as well as the 

strength of the “Reliant Care” name.  The injuries to Plaintiffs are and continue to be ongoing 

and irreparable.  An award of monetary damages alone cannot fully compensate Plaintiffs for 

their injuries and Plaintiffs lack an adequate remedy at law. 

97. Plaintiffs are entitled to a permanent injunction against Defendant, as well as 

other remedies available under Missouri law including compensatory damages, loss of profits, 

costs and attorney’s fees. 

COUNT VI 
COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION  

 
98. Plaintiffs re-allege and incorporate herein by reference the allegations set forth in 

Paragraphs 1 through 49 of the Complaint as if fully set forth herein. 

99. As a result of Plaintiffs’ hard work and investment in time and money in 

advertising, promoting, marketing, offering to provide and providing services in the healthcare 

and rehabilitation industry, Plaintiffs have created and maintained valuable goodwill in the 

“Reliant Care” trade name.  As such, the word “Reliant” has become associated with Plaintiffs 

and has come to symbolize the excellent quality of Plaintiffs’ services.  “Reliant” identifies the 

Plaintiffs in the rehabilitation industry in Missouri. 

100. Defendant, with full knowledge of the fame of the “Reliant Care” trademark, 

intended to and has traded on the goodwill and reputation associated with Plaintiffs’ trademark.   
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101. Defendant has misled and continues to mislead and deceive the general public as 

to the source of its services.  Defendant has permitted and accomplished palming off of 

Defendant’s services as those of Plaintiffs. Defendant has falsely suggested a connection with 

Plaintiffs.  Therefore, Defendant has engaged in unfair competition in violation of Missouri 

common law.  

102. Defendant has unfairly used the name “Reliant” to the prejudice of Plaintiffs’ 

interests. 

103. Defendant has benefited from Plaintiffs’ goodwill and reputation associated with 

the name “Reliant.” 

104. Allowing Defendant to continue using the name “Reliant” in connection with its 

services would be inequitable. 

105. As a proximate result of Defendant’s actions, Plaintiffs have suffered and will 

continue to suffer great damage to their business, goodwill, reputation, profits as well as the 

strength of the “Reliant Care” name.  The injuries to Plaintiffs are and continue to be ongoing 

and irreparable.  An award of monetary damages alone cannot fully compensate Plaintiffs for 

their injuries and Plaintiffs lack an adequate remedy at law. 

106. Plaintiffs are entitled to a permanent injunction against Defendant, as well as 

other remedies available under Missouri law including compensatory damages, lost profits, costs 

and attorney’s fees.   

PRAYER FOR RELIEF  
 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs Reliant Care Group, Inc., Reliant Care Management, LLC and 

Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC request entry of judgment in their favor and against 

Defendant on all of the above counts as follows: 
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 1. That this Court preliminarily and permanently enjoin Defendant, its officers, 

agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all persons in active concert or participation with any 

of them: 

a. from using in any manner the word “Reliant” or any other designation that 

is confusingly similar to “Reliant Care” or likely to cause confusion, 

deception or mistake in connection with the advertising, marketing, 

promotion, offering of services or providing of services in the healthcare 

rehabilitation industry and from using the word “Reliant” in any business 

name; 

b. from passing off, inducing or enabling others to pass off any service 

offered by Plaintiffs, which is not Plaintiffs’ and which is not offered or 

provided under the control and supervision of Plaintiffs and approved by 

Plaintiffs to be offered or provided under the name “Reliant.” 

c. from committing any acts calculated to cause consumers to believe that 

Defendant’s services are those offered and provided under the control and 

supervision of Plaintiffs, or sponsored, approved by or connected with the 

Plaintiffs; 

d. from further diluting and infringing the “Reliant Care” trade name and 

damaging Plaintiffs’ goodwill; and 

e. from otherwise competing unfairly with Plaintiffs in any manner. 

2. That this Court enter a judgment finding that Defendant has infringed, and 

willfully infringed, the “Reliant Care” trademark.   

3. That this Court enter a judgment finding that Defendant has diluted, and willfully 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 01/10/14   Page: 18 of 20 PageID #: 18

Exhibit A at p.18



19 

 

diluted, the “Reliant Care” trademark. 

4. That this Court enter a judgment finding that Defendant’s use of the word 

“Reliant” in its business name has caused and/or is likely to cause confusion among the general 

purchasing public as to the source of origin of Defendant’s rehabilitation services. 

 5. That this Court order Defendant to deliver up for destruction or show proof of 

destruction of any and all advertisements, publications, labels and any other materials in their 

possession, custody or control that depict or reference the trademark covered by this Court’s 

judgment. 

 6. That this Court order Defendant to file with this Court and to serve upon Plaintiffs 

a report in writing and under oath setting forth in detail the manner and form in which Defendant 

has complied with any injunction resulting from this matter within thirty days after service of 

such injunction pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1116(a); 

 7. That this Court award Plaintiffs such damages, compensatory and otherwise, as 

the proof may show. 

 8. That this Court deem this matter an exceptional case under 15 U.S.C. § 1117 and 

that this Court award Plaintiffs their reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred in connection 

with this action. 

 9. That Plaintiffs be awarded exemplary damages for Defendant’s willful and 

intentional acts. 

10. That this Court grant such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and 

proper. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

HESSE MARTONE, P.C. 
 
 

                                                    By:      /s/ Andrew J. Martone 
  Andrew J. Martone, #37382 

Lori A. Schmidt, #45561 
1650 Des Peres Road, Suite 200 
St. Louis, MO 63131 
Phone:  (314) 862-0300  
Fax:      (314) 862-7010 

 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs Reliant Care Group, Inc., 
Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC and 
Reliant Care Management, LLC 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI 

RELIANT CARE GROUP, LLC 
a Missouri Limited Liability Company 

and 

RELIANT CARE MANAGEMENT 
COMPANY, LLC 
a Missouri Limited Liability Company 

and 

RELIANT CARE REHABILITATIVE 
SERVICES, LLC 
a Missouri Limited Liability Company 

v. 

RELIANT MANAGEMENT 
GROUP, LLC 
a Delaware Limited Liability Company 

Plaintiffs/ 
Counterclaim 
Defendants, 

Defendant/ 
Counterclaim 
Plaintiff. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) Case No. 14-cv-00043-CDP 
) 
) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

DEFENDANT/COUNTERCLAIM PLAINTIFF'S SECOND AMENDED 
COUNTERCLAIM 

COMES NOW DEFENDANT/COUNTERCLAIM PLAINTIFF Reliant 

Management Group, LLC (hereinafter "RMG"), reserving all Answers and Affirmative 
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Defenses previously filed, arguing m the alternative, and for the sake of these 

Counterclaims only, for its Counterclaims against Plaintiffs/Counterclaim Defendants in 

this cause states, in the alternative to its Answer and Affirmative Defenses, the following: 

A. Nature of the Action 

1. This is an action for trademark infringement under the Lanham Act, 15 

U.S.C. §l l 14(l)(a); false designation of origin under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§l 125(a); Federal trademark dilution under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(c); 

violation of Illinois' trademark infringement and anti-dilution statute, Illinois Trademark 

Registration and Protection Act, 765 ILCS 1036/60; and common law unfair competition 

arising from Counterclaim Defendants' unauthorized use of one or more variations of the 

trade name "Reliant Rehabilitation" in the Illinois healthcare and rehabilitation services 

market. 

2. In this action, RMG seeks penalties, damages, legal fees and costs 

resulting from violations of federal and state laws. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 1119, 

RMG also asks this court to cancel Counterclaim Defendants' registration of the federally 

registered mark RELIANT CARE GROUP, Registration No. 1,953,530 ("RCG Mark"). 

RMG believes that Counterclaim Defendants have never used the RCG Mark for all the 

covered services, neither prior to nor following application for registration of the RCG 

Mark, in violation of 37 C.F.R. §2.34(a)(l)(i), regarding applications held void ab initio 

based on the applicant's failure to use the mark on the identified goods and in violation of 

37 C.F.R. §7.37 regarding the requirement of use or excusable nonuse of a mark to avoid 

termination. 

3. Counterclaim Defendants' use of the RCG Mark harms RMG and 

2 
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activities listed in the description upon registration of this mark .. 

B. The Parties 

6. Counterclaim Defendant Reliant Care Group, LLC. is a Missouri limited 

liability company with its principal place of business at 1869 Craig Park Court, Maryland 

Heights, Missouri. 

7. Counterclaim Defendant Reliant Care Management, LLC is a Missouri 

limited liability company with his principal place of business at 1869 Craig Park Court, 

Maryland Heights, Missouri. 

8. Counterclaim Defendant Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC is a 

Missouri limited liability company with his principal place of business at 2011 Corona 

Road, Columbia, Missouri. 

9. Counterclaim Plaintiff Reliant Management Group, LLC is a Delaware 

limited liability company with its principal place of business at 5212 Village Creek 

Drive, Plano, Texas, and has previously licensed the use of the RR Mark to its sister 

. company Reliant Pro Rehab, LLC which is a Delaware limited liability company with its 

principal place of business at 5212 Village Creek Drive, Plano, Texas. RPro is registered 

to conduct business in Missouri and in Illinois, as well as in approximately 23 other 

states, as evidenced by the copies of records maintained by the Secretaries of State for 

both Missouri and Illinois respectively marked as Exhibits 2 and 3 and attached hereto 

and incorporated herein for all purposes. 

C. Jurisdiction 

10. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over Counterclaim 

Plaintiffs claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332, 1338; 15 U.S.C. §§ 1116 and 

4 
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1121. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over Counterclaim Plaintiff's state law 

claims under 28 U.S.C. § 1367. 

11. This Court has personal jurisdiction over the Counterclaim Defendants in 

that they are conducting business in the State of Missouri and in this District. 

12. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 m that 

Counterclaim Defendants are subject to personal jurisdiction in this District. 

D. Background Facts 

13. RPro has been registered to conduct business in Illinois since November 

20, 2012, and has in fact used, under license from RMG, the RR Mark in connection with 

solicitation of business and provision of services in Illinois prior to this date. 

14. RMG is not registered to and does not conduct business in Missouri or 

Illinois . 

15. The main website of RMG and RPro has always been http://www.reliant-

rehab.com. A review of this website currently and as archived at https://archive.org/ 

demonstrates that both companies have always marketed their services and recruited at 

this main website the RR Mark and any specific reference to either RMG or RPro in an 

earlier version of the pages on this website would have been an error arising from the 

website manager's lack of knowledge about the continually changing corporate structure 

of these companies and their holding and affiliated companies. 

16. Upon information and belief, Counterclaim Defendant Reliant Care 

Group, LLC allowed RCG, Inc. f.k.a. Reliant Care Group, Inc. ("RCG Inc.") to register 

to conduct business in Illinois on April 23, 2013, as evidenced by "Exhibit 4" attached 

hereto and is incorporated herein for all purposes by this reference. Upon information and 

5 
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belief, RCG Inc. conducted business in Illinois, without formal authorization RCG, using 

the RCG Mark or a similar version thereof. RCG also appears to have allowed some or 

all of the other Counterclaim Defendants to also use, the RCG Mark or a similar version 

thereof in Illinois . 

17. Upon information and belief, Counterclaim Defendant Reliant Care 

Management Company, LLC registered on December 14, 1994, to conduct business in 

Illinois and used, without formal authorization, the RCG Mark or a similar version 

thereof in Illinois . This registration was subsequently revoked on April 1, 1997. 

Nevertheless, this entity has conducted business using the RCG Mark or a similar version 

thereof in Illinois, and it advertises that it currently manages a facility in Illinois. A recent 

screen capture of the www.reliantcaremgmt.com homepage is attached hereto as "Exhibit 

5" and is incorporated herein for all purposes by this reference. 

18. Upon information and belief, Counterclaim Defendant Reliant Care 

Rehabilitative Services, LLC registered on April 13, 2011, to conduct business in Illinois, 

under the assumed name INNOVATE REHAB AND WELLNESS. This entity also 

appears to conduct business in Missouri under the same fictitious name. The Illinois 

Secretary of State records and registration of fictitious name form filed February I , 2012, 

with the Missouri Secretary of State are attached hereto as "Exhibit 6" and "Exhibit 7," 

respectively, and are incorporated herein by this reference. 

19. Counterclaim Defendants use one or more websites to advertise their 

services under the RCG Mark or a similar variation thereof and these websites are 

accessed by actual and potential customers and therapists of all the parties in both Illinois 

and Missouri as well as in all other states ".Nhere any of the parties is conducting business. 
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20. Upon information and belief, current and potential customers, patients and 

therapists of RM G's authorized licensee for use of the RR Mark in Illinois and Missouri 

have been confused and mistakenly called and visited Counterclaim Defendants' 

locations in search of RPro's locations and vis-a-versa. This confusion raises costs of the 

parties by increasing hourly rates paid to therapists, lowering return on investment in 

recruitment of therapist advertising, increased rejection of offers after time spent on 

courting therapists, loss of potential and possibly former customers due to confusion 

about past actions by Counterclaim Defendants incorrectly attributed to RMG or RPro. 

21. Upon information and belief, RMG has lost revenue because Counterclaim 

Defendants' activities in Illinois have caused RPro to suffer damage to its business, 

goodwill, and revenue and has harmed the reputation of RMG and RPro as well as the 

strength of the RR Mark. 

COUNT 1 
TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT 

UNDER_ 15 U.S.A.§ 1114(1)(a) 

22. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set forth in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

23. Counterclaim Defendants are liable to RMG for willful trademark 

infringement in violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §l l 14(l)(a) because 

Counterclaim Defendants' use of the RCG Mark or a similar variation thereof in the State 

of Illinois results in Counterclaim Defendants' use in commerce and without RMG's 

consent of colorable imitations of RMG's RR Mark-i.e., all marks contain the word 

"Reliant." This use is likely to cause confusion, mistake or to deceive the actual and 

potential customers and therapists of all the parties active in Illinois and thereby cause 

7 
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harm to RMG as owner of the RR Mark by damaging the business, goodwill, revenue, 

reputation of RMG and RPro as well as the strength of the RR Mark. As an example 

current or potential customers and therapists of RPro, RMG's licensed provider in 

Missouri and Illinois, have already or are likely to be confused by the branding and 

advertising and recruiting of Counterclaim Defendants and mistakenly contact and 

subsequently contract with Counterclaim Defendants instead of with RPro, RMG's 

licensed operator in Missouri and Illinois. 

COUNT2 
FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN 

UNDER 15 U.S.A. § 1125(a) 

24. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set forth in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

25. Counterclaim Defendants have caused a commercial injury to RMG based 

upon the deceptive use of the RCG Mark and similar variations of same in Illinois 

causing confusion among current and potential customers, patients and therapists of all 

the parties regarding the services and reputations of the parties. Upon information and 

belief, RMG has lost revenue because Counterclaim Defendants' activities in Illinois 

have caused RPro to suffer damage to its business, goodwill, and revenue and has harmed 

the reputation ofRMG and RPro as well as the strength of the RR Mark. 

26. Counterclaim Defendants are liable to defendant for willful false 

designation of origin in violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(a)(l)(A) and (B) 

because Counterclaim Defendants' use of the RCG Mark or a similar variation of same in 

the State of Illinois falsely represents that their services originate with or are sponsored or 

authorized by RMG. 
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27. Counterclaim Defendants' use of the RCG Mark or a similar variation 

thereof in branding their services in the State of Illinois results in Counterclaim 

Defendants' use in commerce and without RMG's consent of colorable imitations of 

RMG's RR Mark-i.e., all marks contain the word "Reliant." This use includes 

misleading statements as to their own services in interstate commerce, gives rise to actual 

deception or at least a tendency to deceive a substantial portion of the intended audience, 

is material in that it is likely to influence contracting decisions of the intended audience, 

and is likely to cause confusion, mistake or to deceive the actual and potential customers 

and therapists of all the parties active in Illinois and thereby cause harm to RMG as 

owner of the RR Mark by damaging the business sales, goodwill, revenue, reputation of 

RMG and RPro as well as the strength of the RR Mark. 

28. These harms affect RMG as the owner of the RR Mark and because they 

affect RPro, the licensee of RMG, by hindering RMG's ability to compete with 

Counterclaim Defendants through RPro in Illinois and Missouri. As an example current 

or potential customers and therapists of RPro, RMG's licensed provider in Missouri and 

Illinois, have already or are likely to be confused by the branding and advertising and 

recruiting of Counterclaim Defendants and mistakenly contact and subsequently contract 

with Counterclaim Defendants instead of with RPro, RMG's licensed operator in 

Missouri and Illinois . 

29. RMG is fan10us across the country for professional rehabilitation services 

branded under the RR Mark and confusion in the industry about distinguishing RMG and 

its licensed providers' services and activities versus the competition harms RMG's 

revenue, goodwill, reputation and the lowers the value of the RR Mark. 
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COUNT3 
FEDERAL TRADEMARK DILUTION 

UNDER 15 U.S.A.§ 1125(c) 

30. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set forth in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

31. Counterclaim Defendants are liable to RMG for willful trademark dilution 

m violation of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §1125(c) because their advertisement, 

promotion, marketing, and recruiting in connection with their offering of services and 

providing of services in the healthcare and rehabilitation market began after the RR Mark 

was already famous and uses a variation of the RR Mark-i.e., the word "Reliant" in 

their service mark-that is likely to cause dilution of the RR Mark by blurring and/or 

dilution and tarnishes the distinctive quality of the RR Mark, which also has the word 

"Reliant" in it. 

32. Counterclaim Defendants' above-described actions were done with willful 

intent to trade on defendant's reputation and/or to cause dilution of the famous RR Mark 

used and advertised since 2003, and currently covering rehabilitation services provided in 

more than 20 states. As an example current or potential customers and therapists of RPro, 

RMG's licensed provider in Missouri and Illinois, have already or are likely to be 

confused by the branding and advertising and recruiting of Counterclaim Defendants and 

mistakenly contact and subsequently contract with Counterclaim Defendants instead of 

with RPro, RMG's licensed operator in Missouri and Illinois. 

COUNT4 
VIOLATION OF ILLINOIS' ANTIDILUTION STATUTE 
INFRINGEMENT UNDER 765 ILCS 1036 ET SEQ. 
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33. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set f01th in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

34. Counterclaim Defendants are liable to defendant for willful trademark 

infringement/dilution in violation oflllinois law because their use of their RCG Mark or a 

similar variation thereof in the State of Illinois is in direct competition with RMG's 

licensed user of the federally registered RR Mark, RPro and causes confusion as to the 

ownership or authorization of services provided under a service mark incorporating the 

word "Reliant" and thereby causes harm to RMG, as the mark owner of RR Mark, by 

causing confusion among the consuming public-i.e., Medicare approved providers of 

rehabilitation services, patients and therapists-thereby damaging RMG's and RPro's 

business, goodwill, revenue, reputation as well as the strength of the mark. As an 

example current or potential customers and therapists of RPro, RMG's licensed provider 

in Missouri and Illinois, have already or are likely to be confused by the branding and 

advertising and recruiting of Counterclaim Defendants and mistakenly contact and 

subsequently contract wit~ Counterclaim Defendants instead of with RPro, RMG's 

licensed operator in Missouri and Illinois . 

35. Counterclaim Defendants' have caused injury, arising from confusion and 

mistake, to RMG and its licensed provider in Missouri and Illinois. One example is the 

lowered value of the RR Mark because of confusion and mistake about which services, 

whether those of RPro or the Cmmterclaim Defendants, are covered by the RR Mark and 

which are covered by the variations of the RCG Mark used in Illinois and Missouri. This 

confusion and mistake would cease if Counterclaim Defendants were not using service 

marks similar to the RR Mark. 
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COUNTS 
COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT 

36. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set forth in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

37. Counterclaim Defendants are liable to defendant for willful trademark 

infringement/dilution in violation of Illinois common law because their use of their RCG 

Mark or a similar variation thereof in the State of Illinois is in direct competition with 

RM G's licensed user of the federally registered RR Mark, RPro and causes confusion as 

to the ownership or authorization of services provided under a service mark incorporating 

the word "Reliant" and thereby causes harm to RMG, as the mark owner of RR Mark, by 

causing confusion among the consuming public-i.e., Medicare approved providers of 

rehabilitation services, patients and therapists-thereby damaging RMG's and RPro's 

business, goodwill, revenue, reputation as well as the strength of the mark. As an 

example current or potential customers and therapists of RPro, RMG's licensed provider 

in Missouri and Illinois, .have already or are likely to be confused by the branding and 

advertising and recruiting of Counterclaim Defendants and mistakenly contact and 

subsequently contract with Counterclaim Defendants instead of with RPro, RMG's 

licensed operator in Missouri and Illinois. 

38. Counterclaim Defendants' have caused injury, arising from confusion and 

mistake, to RMG and its licensed provider in Missouri and Illinois. One example is the 

lowered value of the RR Mark because of confusion and mistake about which services, 

whether those of RPro or the Counterclaim Defendants, are covered by the RR Mark and 

which are covered by the variations of the RCG Mark used in Illinois and Missouri. This 

12 
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confusion and mistake would cease if Counterclaim Defendants were not using service 

marks similar to the RR Mark. 

COUNT6 
COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION 

39. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set forth in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

40. Counterclaim Defendants are liable to defendant for unfair and unlawful 

competition under Illinois common law because their use of the RCG Mark or a similar 

variation of same in the State of Illinois is in direct competition with RMG's licensed 

provider in Missouri and Illinois, RPro, using the federally registered RR Mark and 

therefore causes confusion as to the ownership or authorization by causing the target 

audience to think Counterclaim Defendants and their competing rehabilitation services 

are also covered by the RR Mark and vie-a-versa. This confusion and mistake causes 

harm to RMG as the RR Mark owner by damaging RMG's and RPro's business, 

goodwill, revenue, reputation as well as the strength of the mark. As an example current 

or potential customers and therapists of RPro, RMG's licensed provider in Missouri and 

Illinois, have already or are likely to be confused by the branding and advertising and 

recruiting of Counterclaim Defendants and mistakenly contact and subsequently contract 

with Counterclaim Defendants instead of with RPro, RMG's licensed operator in 

Missouri and Illinois . 

41. Counterclaim Defendants' have caused injury, arising from confusion and 

mistake, to RMG and its licensed provider in Missouri and Illinois . One example is the 

lowered value of the RR Mark because of confusion and mistake about which services, 

13 
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whether those of RPro or the Counterclaim Defendants, are covered by the RR Mark and 

which are covered by the variations of the RCG Mark used in Illinois and Missouri. This 

confusion and mistake would cease if Counterclaim Defendants were not using service 

marks similar to the RR Mark. 

COUNT7 
CANCELLATION OF U.S. 

TRADEMARK REGISTRATION NO. 1,953,530 
FOR NONUSE OR NONCONTINUOUS USE 

42. RMG restates and realleges the allegations set forth in all the paragraphs 

above and below as if fully set forth herein in connection with this count. 

43. RMG will be damaged by the continued registration of Counterclaim 

Defendants' RCG Mark in that RMG is using, and has licensed use of, the RR Mark in 

commerce and the value, reputation, goodwill, and registration of the RR mark is being 

impaired by the continued registration of Counterclaim Defendants' RCG Mark. Further, 

if Counterclaim Defendants' RCG Mark is permitted to remain on the Principal Register, 

with all the substantive and procedural benefits conferred by its status as a registration on 

the Principal Register, Counterclaim Defendants will enjoy unlawful gain and advantage 

to which they are not entitled under the Trademark Act of 1946. 

44. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 1119, RMG also asks this court to cancel 

Counternlaim Defendants' registration of the federally registered RCG Mark. RMG 

believes that Counterclaim Defendants have never used the RCG Mark for all the covered 

services, neither prior to nor following application for registration of the RCG Mark, in 

violation of 37 C.F.R. §2.34(a)(l)(i), which provides that applications shall be held void 

ab initio based on the applicant's failure to use the mark on the identified goods, and in 

violation of 37 C.F.R. §7.37, which requires use or excusable nonuse of a mark to avoid 

14 
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termination. 

45. RMG believes the facts obtained through discovery will demonstrate that 

the current and previous owners of the RCG Mark were not providing all of the services 

listed in their application for federal registration neither prior to nor subsequent to their 

application for registration of the RCG Mark. For example, Counterclaim Defendants 

appear to not have consistently provided all of the listed services since February 22, 

1993, and do not appear to have informed and obtained consent from the United States 

Patent and Trademark Office prior to each instance when some listed services were not 

being provided and properly branded with the RCG Mark. Use of variations of the RCG 

Mark does not constitute proper use of the RCG Mark. 

E. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, in the alternative to RMG's answer and affirmative defenses, 

RMG asks the court to enter judgment in its favor and against Counterclaim Defendants, 

jointly and severally, including an award of damages, exemplary damages for their 

willful and intentional acts, and to enjoin them from the use of RCG Mark and any other 

service mark containing the word "Reliant" in the State of Illinois, dismiss their suit 

against RMG with prejudice, assess costs against them, cancel their Registration No. 

1953530, find this to be an exceptional case and award RMG its reasonable attorney fees 

under 15 U.S.C. § 1117(a), and award RMG all other relief the court deems appropriate. 

Respectfully submitted this 3rd day of March 2015. 

Isl David W Nance 
David W. Nance, admitted pro hac vice 
FL Bar No. 32126, LA Bar No. 25467 
NY 3rd Dept., TX Bar No. 24013225 
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DAVID W. NANCE LAW FIRM, LLC 
3912 Constance Street 
New Orleans, Louisiana 70115 
504. 717.4730 direct 
504.355.1669 facsimile 
david@dwnlaw.com 
www.dwnlaw.com 
Co-Counsel for Defendant/Counterclaim Plaintiff 
Reliant Management Group, LLC 

ls/Howard A. Shalowitz 
Howard A. Shalowitz #37223MO 

P.O. Box 410404 

St. Louis, MO 63141-0404 

Phone: (314) 277-9977 

Fax: (314) 392-9912 

howard@shalowitz.org 

Co-Counsel for Defendant 
Reliant Management Group, LLC 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing document has been 

served on the persons listed below on this 3rd day of March 2015. 
Via ECF filing: 
Andrew J. Martone (#37382) 
Lori A. Schmidt (#45561) 
HESSE MARTONE, P.C. 
1650 Des Peres Road, Suite 200 
St. Louis, MO 63131 
314.862.0300 telephone 
314.862.7010 facsimile 
andymartone@hessemartone.com 
lorischmidt@hessemartone.com 
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFFS/COUNTERCLAIM DEFENDANTS 

Isl David W Nance 

David W. Nance 
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ｾ＠ United States Patent and Trademark Office 
1
• Home I Site Index I Search I FAQ I Glossary I Guides I Contacts I eBusiness I eBiz alerts I News I Help 

Trademarks > Trademark Electronic Search System (TESS) 

TESS was last updated on Fri Feb 27 03:20:54 EST 2015 

t4·1Ai·hi 

[ Logout ) Please logout when you are done to release system resources allocated for you. 

l Start J List At: ~' -~' OR l Jump J to record: ~' -~' Record 2 out of 2 

TSDR TTAB status ( Use the "Back" button of the Internet Browser to 
return to TESS) 

Word Mark 

Goods and 
Services 

Mark Drawing 
Code 

Design Search 
Code 

Reliant 
Rehabilitation 

RELIANT REHABILITATION 

IC 044. US 100 101 . G & S: Physical rehabilitation; Providing physical rehabilitation facilities. FIRST 
USE: 20030700. FIRST USE IN COMMERCE: 20031100 

(3) DESIGN PLUS WORDS, LETTERS, AND/OR NUMBERS 

01.15.15 - Fire (flames), emanating from objects, words or numbers 
26.15.03 - Incomplete polygons and polygons made of broken or dotted lines; Polygons (incomplete); 
Polygons made with broken lines 
26.15.21 - Polygons that are completely or partially shaded 

INAN Inanimate objects such as lighting,clouds,footprints,atomic 
configurations,snowflakes,rainbows,flames 

Trademark 
Search Facility 
Classification 
Code 

SHAPES-COLORS-3-0R-MORE Design listing or lined for three or more colors 
SHAPES-GEOMETRIC Geometric figures and solids including squares, rectangles, quadrilaterals and 
polygons 

Serial Number 

Filing Date 

Current Basis 

Original Filing 
Basis 

Published for 
Opposition 

Registration 
Number 

Registration 
Date 

77264934 

August27,2007 

1A 

1A 

February 26, 2008 

3426134 

May 13, 2008 

http://tmsearch.uspto.gov/bin/showfield?f=doc&state=4803:mkrrie.2.2 
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2/27/2015 

Owner 

Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP Doc. ff?d~ r.l<fllecp:q~d~86ij~~5ri<5ES~ age: 2 of 2 PagelD # : 382 
(REGISTRANT) Reliant Management Group, L.L.C. OBA Reliant Rehabilitation LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY LOUISIANA 11616 Southfork Ave., Ste. 101 Baton Rouge LOUISIANA 70816 

Assignment 
Recorded 

Attorney of 
Record 

Disclaimer 

Description of 
Mark 

Type of Mark 

Register 

Affidavit Text 

Live/Dead 
Indicator 

(LAST LISTED OWNER) RELIANT MANAGEMENT GROUP, L.L.C. OBA Reliant Rehabilitation 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY DELAWARE c/o Paracorp Incorporated 2140 S. Dupont Highway 
Camden DELAWARE 19934 

ASSIGNMENT RECORDED 

David W. Nance 

NO CLAIM IS MADE TO THE EXCLUSIVE RIGHT TO USE "REHABILITATION" APART FROM THE 
MARK AS SHOWN 

The color(s) red, blue, black and white is/are claimed as a feature of the mark. The mark consists of a 
solid white background; on the left and centered vertically is a vertically split pentagon tilted to the left 
with a red side on the left, a blue side on the right and the white background visible in the hollowed 
center with a red flame rising from the bottom of the red, left side vertically upwards almost to the top of 
the blue right side of the pentagon; immediately to the right of the pentagon are the words in black 
"Reliant" on top of "Rehabilitation" both aligned on the left with the first word extending half as far to the 
right as the second word .. 

SERVICE MARK 

PRINCIPAL 

SECT 15. SECT 8 (6-YR). 

LIVE 

I ,HOME I SITE INDEX ! SEARCH I eBUSINESS I HELP I PRIVACY POLICY 

t4·hhi·~1· 
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JASON KANDER Business Elections Investor Protection Stale 

MISSOURI 
Services & Voting &Securities Library 

SECRETARY ｾ＠ ｾ＠ IP !A OF STATE 

FILED DOCUMENTS 

(Click above to view filed documents U1at are available.) 

Business Name History 

Name 
Reliant Pro Rehab, LLC 

Limited Liability Company- Foreign - lnfonnation 
Charter Number: 
Status: 

Entity Creation Date: 

State of Business.: 
Expiration Date: 

Registered Agent 
Agent Name: 
Office Address: 

Malling Address: 

sos.mo.gov 
Internet Privacy Polley 

Bid Opportunities 
Missouri State Government 

Employment 
Directions 

Site Map 
Employee Access 

lmps://www .sos.mo.gov/BusinessEntity/soskb/Corp.asp?3537864 

Date: 3/24/2014 

JASON 
KANDER. 

- ' . 
-

Name Type 
Legal 

FL1349602 

Active 

10/16/2013 

DE 
Perpetual 

PARACORPINCORPORATED 
210 East High St. 
Jefferson City MO 65101 

Contact Us: 
600 West Main Street 
Jefferson City, MO 65101 
Main Office: (573) 751-4936 
lnfo@sos.mo.gov 
Branch Offices 

Records Mministrative Publications 
&Archives Rulas &Forms 
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JESSEWlliTE 
SECRE'TARY OF STATE 

LLC FILE DETAIL REPORT 

F tyNa~ 11 RELIANT PRO REHAB, LLC J f File Number - l 04094433 i 
j Status 11 ACTIVE -] Fn I 10/17/2014 I 

Entity Type 11 LLC J I Type of LLC I Foreign I 
File Date ｾ＠ i 11120,2012 11 Jurisdiction I DE I 

I Agent Name J j-oRPINC _ J I Agent Change Date I 11/20/2012 I 
Agent Street Address f 1 S 2ND ST STE 201 1 1 Principal Office --~ 5212 VILLAGE CREEK DR 

PLANO, TX 75093 

I Agent City --~I ~' s_P_R_1_NG_ F1_E_LD ______ J [ M: a~ men~ e 

~, -A-g-en_t_Z-ip----J~ 162704 j t Duration 

= i MGR ｾ＠
I ~ ERPETUAL 

l 
J 

~a~~ual Report Filing 110/17/2014 ] ~ or ::_ 

[ Series Name 11 NOT AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH SERIES 

Return to the Search Screen 

11 2014 

-·----~ 

I Purchase Certificate of Good Standing I 
(One Certificate per 

Transaction) 

BACK TO CYBERDRIVEILLINO IS.COM HOME PAGE 

Exhibit 3 
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LLC · File Detail Report 

LLC FILE DETAIL REPORT 

I EotltyNam, I RELIANT CARE I FU, N,mb" 

I I'""'°' REHABILITATNE SERVICES, 
L.L.C. 

I Status 11 ACTIVE 11 On 11 02,21,2014 

I Entity Type 11 'LLC I i Type of LLC_ 11 Foreign 

I File Date 11 04/13/2011 11 Jurisdiction II MO 

I Agent Name J I ROBERT J CRADDICK j I Agent Change Date 11 04/13/2011 
Agent Street Address 15050 SUMMIT AVE I l Principal Office 11869 CRAIG PARK COURT 

ST LOUIS, MO 63146 

I Agent City 11 EST LOUIS 11 Management Type II MBR View I 
I AgentZip 11 62203 11 Duration 11 PERPETUAL I 

Annual Report Filing I 02121,2014 11 ForYear Jl2014 I Date 

I Assumed Name I ~ TIVE - INNOVATE REHAB AND WELLNESS J 
I Series Name 11 NOT AUTHORIZED TO ESTABLISH SERIES 

Return to the Search Screen I Purchase Certificate of Good Standing j 

(One Certificate per 
Transaction) 

BACK TO CYBERDR IVE ILLINOIS COM HOME PAGE 

Exhibit 4 

I 
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Reliant Care Management Company I St. Louis 
Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP Doc.#: 31-5 Filed: 04/15/15 Page: 1 of 6 PagelD #: 386 

Reliant Care Management Company L.L.C. 
Home 
Nursing Homes 
Bernard Care Center, L.L.C. 
Bridgewood Health Care Center, L.L.C. 
Chariton Park Health Care Center, L.L.C. 
Crestwood Health Care Center, L.L.C. 
Eastview Manor Care Center 
Four Seasons Living Center, L.L.C. 
Heritage Care Center of Berkeley, L.L.C. 
Kasey Paige Assisted Living, L.L.C. 
Levering Regional Health Care Center, L.L.C. 
Milan Health Care Center Exhibit 5 
Nathan Health Care Center, L.L.C. 
North Village Park, L.L.C. 
St Elizabeth Care Center 
Stonecrest Healthcare 
Westview Nursing Home 
About 
Contact 
We help independent healthcare facilities provide long term healthcare in Missouri and Illinois 
Homes 

http://reliantcaremgmt.com/[2/27/ 15, 2: 16:02 PM] 
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Crestwood Health Care Center, L.LC. 

Kasey Paige Assisted Living, L.L.C. 

http://reliantcaremgmt.com/[2/27/15, 2: 16:02 PM] 
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Reliant Care Management Company I St. Louis 
Case: 4:14-cv-00043-CDP Doc. #: 31-5 Filed: 04/15/15 Page: 4 of 6 PagelD #: 389 "1!1111 __ ......... --, 

Locations 
The best care comes from within the community 
Sitemap 

http://reliantcaremgmt.com/[2/27 I 15, 2: 16:02 PM] 
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Reliant Care Management CompanyLLc 

(http://reliantcaremgmt.com) 
Home (http://reliantcaremgmt.com) 

Nursing Homes (http://reliantcaremgmt.com/nursing-

homes/) 

About (http://reliantcaremgmt.com/about/) 

Contact (http://reliantcaremgmt.com/contact/) 

We help independent healthcare facilities provide 

long term healthcare in Missouri and Illinois 

Homes 

Bernard Care Center, Bridgewood Health Chariton Park Health Crestwood Health Eastview Manor Care 

L. L. C. Care Center, L. L. C. Care Center, L. L. C. Care Center, L. L. C. Center 

(http: //reliantcaremg(nt.t:p,rl;ife]oo:nes;fuem:gi(nttq:o#y'ekn.mes~irlg~y'ekn.mes~c~#v'elmmes~cffll.tµmodsm/homes. 

Four Seasons Living · Heritage Care Center Kasey Paige Assisted Levering Regional Milan Health Care 

Center, L. L. C. ofBerkeley, L. L. C. Living, L. L. C. Health Care Center, Center 

(http: //reliantcaremg(htt:q:orl;ife]oo:nes;ffumg(htt:q:o#y'elmmes~gfsL.dom/homes/kaseyfhttp://reliantcaremgmt.com/homes, 

Nathan Health Care North Village Park, St Elizabeth Care Stonecrest Westview Nursing 

Center, L. L. C. L. L. C. Center Healthcare Home 

(http: //reliantcaremg(htt:q:o#fe]oo:nes~q:orl;i;hlimies~#)'hlimie6~g(htt:q:orl;iy'elmmes~slmlgme.srem/homes, 

health-care-center/) village-park/) elizabeth-care-

center/) 

healthcare/) nursing-home/) 
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Locations 

The best care comes from within the community 

Sitemap (/sitemap index.xml) 
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JESSE WHITE 
SECRETARY OF STATE 

CORPORATION FILE DETAIL REPORT 

~[!_E_nt_it_y _N_a_m_e ____ J~ J RELIANT CARE GRO~ . j ~' -F-ile_ N_ u_m_ b_e_r ______ ~I ~[6s_a_a6_1_4_62 ______ ｾ＠

[. Status I § 1vE _________ ------ ___ _ 

l!ntity Type I F RPORATION I~' -Ty_p_e_o_f _c_o_rP _____ ~J I DOMESTIC BCA 

.--ln-co_r_p_or-a-tio_n_D_a-te--, I 04/23/20-13 ________ ] f State If UJNOIS-------~ 
(Domestic) L L . l_ 

~' _A _ge_n_t _N_am_ e ___ ~ J J BRETNER PAUL - , , Agent Change Date J ._J 0_4_12_3_12_0_13 ______ __, 

1

125 N BRITTANY LN I President Name & Address BRETNER PAUL 125 N 
BRITTANY LN , HAINESVILLE, 
IL 60030 

Agent Street Address 

~ A_g_en_t_C_it_Y ____ ｾ＠ ~---------~' ' Secretary Name & Address 

~' -A_g_en_t_z_iP ____ ~~---------~' ~ -o_n _D_at_e ____ ___,l!._P_E_R_P_E_T_U_AL _____ ____,J 

~D-Aa-~e_nu_a_l _R_ep_o_rt_ F_i_lin_g_~ E _,o_o_oo ______ ~ II .... -F-or_Y_e_a_r ______ __,J ~ 015 I 
] [ INACTIVE - IN HOME PERSONAL SERVICES, IL-~1- J 

Return to the Search Screen I Purchase Certificate of Good Standing I 
(One Certificate per 

Transaction) 

BACK TO CYBERDRIVE ILLINO IS.COM HOME PAGE Exhibit 6 
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State of Missouri 
Robin Carnahan, Secretary of State 

Registration of Fictitious Name 

X01201062 

Date Filed: 02/01/2012 

Expiration Date: 02/01/2017 

Robin Carnahan 

secretary of State 

This fictitious name filing shall expire 5 years from the date filed unless a renewal filing is submitted within 6 months 
prior to the expiration date. 

This information is for the use of the public and gives no protection to the name betng registered. There is no provision 
in this Chapter to keep another person or business entity from adopting and using the same name. (Chapter 417, RSMo) 

The undersigned is doing business under the following name, and at the following address: 

Business name to be registered: 

Business address: 

City, State and Zip Code: 

Innovate Rehab and Wellness 

9200 Watson Road, Suite 201 

St. Louis MO 63126 

If all parties are jointly and severally liable, percentage of ownership need not be listed. 

Name of Owners, 
Individual or 

Business Entity Street and Number 
RELIANT CARE 9200 Watson Rd Suite 201 
REHABILITATIVE SERVICES, 
L.L.C. 

In Affirmation thereof, the facts stated above are true: 

City and State Zip Code 
St. Loui.sMO 63126 

Exhibit 7 

If listed, 
Pe1·centage of 

ownership must 
equal 100% 

100% 

(ll1c 1mdersig11etl lU1d<:r$lw1ds thut false statements mndc in U1is lilin g ore subject to tJ1c p,!llulti c~ of n ful& ckclomtion under &.'Ctiou 575.060, RSMo) 

Richard J DeStefane Owner 

(Authorit:ed Signature) (A11thoriz.ed Part)' Relationsliip) 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI 

 

RELIANT CARE GROUP, LLC  )  

a Missouri Limited Liability Company 

 

and  

 

RELIANT CARE MANAGEMENT 

COMPANY, LLC  

a Missouri Limited Liability Company 

 

and 

 

RELIANT CARE REHABILITATIVE 

SERVICES, LLC 

a Missouri Limited Liability Company 

 

 ) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 Plaintiffs and 

Defendants in 

Counterclaim, 

) 

) 

) 

 

  ) Case No. 14-cv-00043-CDP 

v.  )  

  ) JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

RELIANT MANAGEMENT  

GROUP, LLC  

a Delaware Limited Liability Company 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Defendant and 

Plaintiff in 

Counterclaim. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

         

RMG First Response to RC First Set of Interrogatories 

  

To:  Plaintiffs and Defendants in Counterclaim, Reliant Care Group, LLC; Reliant Care 

Management Company, LLC; and Reliant Care Rehabilitative Services, LLC ("RC"), through its 

counsel of record, Lori A. Schmidt, Esq. of HESSE MARTONE, P.C., 1650 Des Peres Road, 

Suite 200, St. Louis, MO 63131. 

.  
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2. All persons listed, aside from those listed as witnesses for RC all of whom are hereby 

listed here by this reference, may be contacted through RMG counsel of record, 

David Nance.  

a. Joe McDonough, C.E.O. is generally aware of all aspects of this litigation due to 

his management position; 

b. John Lund, C.F.O. is generally aware of all aspects of this litigation due to his 

management position and would have knowledge about financial aspects of 

activities in both states; 

c. Peggy Gourgues, C.O.O.; is generally aware of all aspects of this litigation due to 

her management position and would have additional information regarding 

activities in both states; 

d. Stephanie Necaise, Chief Development Officer is generally aware of all aspects of 

this litigation due to his management position and may have additional 

information regarding activities in both states; 

e. Austin Lanham, in-house counsel is generally aware of all aspects of this 

litigation due to his management position; and 

f. Robert Harrington, M.D., Chief Medical Officer. 

 

 

3. RMG is solely owned by Reliant Rehabilitation Holdings, Inc. and both entities are 

based at the same Plano address. 

 

 

4. Joe McDonough, President/C.E.O.; John Lund, C.F.O.; Peggy Gourgues, C.O.O.; and 

Stephanie Necaise, C.B.D. 
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5. RMG is solely owned by Reliant Rehabilitation Holdings, Inc. and both entities are 

based at the same Plano address. 

 

 

1. Joe McDonough, President/C.E.O.; John Lund, C.F.O.; Peggy Gourgues, C.O.O.; and 

Stephanie Necaise, C.B.D. 

 

 

 

2. RMG does not own, manage or provide any services to anyone in Illinois or Missouri. 
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s/ David W. Nance 

___________________________ 

David W. Nance  

 

FL Bar No. 32126 

LA Bar No. 25467 

NY 3
rd

 Dept. 

TX Bar No. 24013225 

 

COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT 

 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing document has been served 

on the persons listed below on this 18
th

 day of May 2015.  

 

Via ECF filing: 

Andrew J. Martone (#37382)   COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANTS 

Lori A. Schmidt (#45561)    

HESSE MARTONE, P.C. 

1650 Des Peres Road, Suite 200 

St. Louis, MO 63131 

314.862.0300 telephone 

314.862.7010 facsimile 

andymartone@hessemartone.com 

lorischmidt@hessemartone.com 

 

 

s/ David W. Nance 

___________________________ 

David W. Nance  
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
RELIANT CARE GROUP, LLC, et al. ) 
 ) 
               Plaintiffs, ) 
 ) 
          vs. ) Case No. 4:14CV43 CDP 
 ) 
RELIANT MANAGEMENT  ) 
GROUP, LLC, ) 
 ) 
               Defendant. ) 

 
CASE MANAGEMENT ORDER - TRACK 3 : COMPLEX  

 
 Pursuant to the Civil Justice Reform Act Expense and Delay Reduction Plan 

and the Differentiated Case Management Program of the United States District 

Court of the Eastern District of Missouri, and the Rule 16 Conference held on 

December 19, 2014, 

 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED  that any amendment to defendant’s 

counterclaim shall be due by January 9, 2015. 

 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED  that the following schedule shall apply in 

this case, and will be modified only upon a showing of exceptional circumstances: 

I. SCHEDULING PLAN 
 

 1. This case has been assigned to Track 3 (Complex). 
 
 2. All motions for joinder of additional parties or amendment of 
pleadings shall be filed no later than May 1, 2015. 
 
 3. Disclosure shall proceed in the following manner: 
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  (a) The parties shall make all disclosures required by Rule 26(a)(1), 
Fed. R. Civ. P., no later than January 20, 2015. 
 
  (b) Plaintiff shall disclose all expert witnesses and shall provide the 
reports required by Rule 26(a)(2), Fed. R. Civ. P., no later than July 15, 2015, and 
shall make expert witnesses available for depositions, and have depositions 
completed, no later than August 14, 2015.   
 
  (c) Plaintiff shall disclose all rebuttal expert witnesses and shall 
provide the reports required by Rule 26(a)(2), Fed. R. Civ. P., no later than 
November 16, 2015, and shall make expert witnesses available for depositions, 
and have depositions completed, no later than December 15, 2015. 
 

(d) Defendant shall disclose all expert witnesses and shall provide 
the reports required by Rule 26(a)(2), Fed. R. Civ. P., no later than September 15, 
2015, and shall make expert witnesses available for depositions, and have 
depositions completed, no later than October 15, 2015 
 
  (e) The presumptive limits of ten (10) depositions per side as set 
forth in Rule 30(a)(2)(A), Fed. R. Civ. P., and twenty-five (25) interrogatories per 
party as set forth in Rule 33(a), Fed. R. Civ. P., shall apply. 
 
  (f) Requests for physical or mental examinations of parties 
pursuant to Rule 35, Fed. R. Civ. P., are not expected in this case. 
 
  (g) The parties shall complete all discovery in this case no later 
than December 15, 2015. 
 
  (h) Motions to compel shall be pursued in a diligent and timely 
manner, but in no event filed more than seven (7) days following the discovery 
deadline set out above. 
 
 4. This case will be referred to alternative dispute resolution effective 
March 27, 2015, and that reference shall terminate on May 29, 2015. 
 
 5. Any motions to dismiss, motions for summary judgment, motions for 
judgment on the pleadings, or any motions to limit must be filed no later than 
March 30, 2016.  Opposition briefs shall be filed no later than thirty days after the 
motion or April 29, 2016, whichever is earlier. Any reply brief may be filed no 
later than ten days following the response brief or May 9, 2016, whichever is 
earlier. 
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 6.  Any motions to exclude expert testimony must be filed no later than 
January 15, 2016.  Opposition briefs shall be filed no later than 14 days after the 
motion or January 29, 2016, whichever is earlier. Any reply brief may be filed no 
later than seven days following the response brief or February 5, whichever is 
earlier. 
 
 7.  A hearing on any Daubert motion to exclude expert testimony will be 
held on February 19, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. in Courtroom 14-South. 
  
II.  ORDER RELATING TO TRIAL  
 
 This action is set for a JURY trial on August 22, 2016, at 8:30 a.m.  This is 
a two week docket. 
 
 Pursuant to Local Rule 8.04 the court may tax against one or all parties the 
per diem, mileage, and other expenses of providing a jury for the parties, when the 
case is terminated or settled by the parties at a time too late to cancel the jury 
attendance or to use the summoned jurors in another trial, unless good cause for the 
delayed termination or settlement is shown. 
 
 In this case, unless otherwise ordered by the Court, the attorneys shall, 
not less than twenty (20) days prior to the date set for trial: 
 
 1. Stipulation:  Meet and jointly prepare and file with the Clerk a 
JOINT Stipulation of all uncontested facts, which may be read into evidence 
subject to any objections of any party set forth in said stipulation (including a brief 
summary of the case which may be used on Voir Dire). 
 
 2. Witnesses: 
 
  (a) Deliver to opposing counsel, and to the Clerk, a list of all 
proposed witnesses, identifying those witnesses who will be called to testify and 
those who may be called. 
 
  (b) Except for good cause shown, no party will be permitted to call 
any witnesses not listed in compliance with this Order. 
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3. Exhibits: 
 
  (a) Mark for identification all exhibits to be offered in evidence at 
the trial (Plaintiffs to use Arabic numerals and defendants to use letters, e.g., Pltf-1, 
Deft.-A, or Pltf. Jones-1, Deft Smith-A, if there is more than one plaintiff or 
defendant), and deliver to opposing counsel and to the Clerk a list of such exhibits, 
identifying those that will be introduced into evidence and those that may be 
introduced.  The list shall clearly indicate for each business record whether the 
proponent seeks to authenticate the business record by affidavit or declaration 
pursuant to Fed. R. Evid. 902(11) or 902(12). 
 
  (b) Submit said exhibits or true copies thereof, and copies of all 
affidavits or declarations pursuant to Fed. R. Evid. 902(11)or 902(12), to opposing 
counsel for examination.  Prior to trial, the parties shall stipulate which exhibits 
may be introduced without objection or preliminary identification, and shall file 
written objections to all other exhibits. 
 
  (c) Except for good cause shown, no party will be permitted to 
offer any exhibits not identified or not submitted by said party for examination by 
opposing counsel in compliance with this Order.  Any objections not made in 
writing at least ten (10) days prior to trial may be considered waived. 
 

4. Depositions, Interrogatory Answers, and Request for Admissions: 
 
  (a) Deliver to opposing counsel and to the Clerk a list of all 
interrogatory answers or parts thereof and depositions or parts thereof (identified 
by page and line numbers), and answers to requests for admissions proposed to be 
offered in evidence.  At least ten (10) days before trial, opposing counsel shall state 
in writing any objections to such testimony and shall identify any additional 
portions of such depositions not listed by the offering party which opposing 
counsel proposes to offer. 
 
  (b) Except for good cause shown, no party will be permitted to 
offer any interrogatory answer, or deposition or part thereof, or answer to a request 
for admissions not listed in compliance with this Order.  Any objections not made 
as above required may be considered waived. 
 
 5. Instructions:  Submit to the Court and to opposing counsel their 
written request for instructions and forms of verdicts reserving the right to submit 
requests for additional or modified instructions at least ten (10) days before trial in 
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light of opposing party’s requests for instructions.  (Each request must be 
supported by at least one pertinent citation.) 
 
 6. Trial Brief:   Submit to the Court and opposing counsel a trial brief 
stating the legal and factual issues and authorities relied on and discussing any 
anticipated substantive or procedural problems. 
 
 7. Motions In Limine:   File all motions in limine to exclude evidence at 
least ten (10) days before trial. 
 
 Failure to comply with any part of this order may result in the imposition of 
sanctions. 
 
 
 
 
        
      CATHERINE D. PERRY 
      UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 
 
Dated this 19th day of December, 20144. 
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